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          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Today we will

          3  hear and take a vote on the extension of the ICIP

          4  Legislation, as well as testimony on the Markets

          5  Bill and amending the Markets Bill.

          6                 Good afternoon, and welcome to

          7  today's hearing by the Committee of Economic

          8  Development.  My name is Jerome O'Donovan and I

          9  Chair the City Council's Economic Development

         10  Committee.

         11                 I want to introduce those members of

         12  the Committee here today. Incidentally, there is

         13  another hearing outside, some of the members are out

         14  there and they will be back and forth.

         15                 We have Councilman Fisher from

         16  Brooklyn, Councilwoman Eldridge from Manhattan,

         17  Councilman DiBrienza from Brooklyn, Councilman

         18  Espada that is joining us today from the Bronx --

         19  Rodriguez.  I'm sorry.

         20                 We have Councilman Golden that is

         21  here, Councilwoman Clarke is outside, and other

         22  Council members will be coming in, and Councilman

         23  McCaffrey from Queens.

         24                 Today we will be conducting a hearing

         25  first, and vote on Intro. No. 609, submitted by, a
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          2  request of the Mayor and co-sponsored by myself and

          3  Council Member Golden.

          4                 This bill seeks to extend the current

          5  ICIP benefits for an additional four years, until

          6  June 30th, 2003, and establishes a Temporary

          7  Boundary Commission to meet in 1999 to determine the

          8  boundaries of various areas eligible for incentives

          9  under the program.

         10                 The ICIP Program was developed in

         11  1994 to Local Law 71, and as been amended several

         12  times, both recently in 1995 to attract and retain

         13  businesses in New York City, who might otherwise

         14  relocate elsewhere, and to encourage the development

         15  of real property in areas that need economic

         16  development by creating a tax incentive program to

         17  accomplish these goals.

         18                 The program provides for exemption

         19  from, or deferral of taxation on eligible industrial

         20  or commercial building construction, modernization,

         21  rehabilitation, expanded or otherwise improved

         22  physically.  Benefits under the ICIP Program are

         23  granted, as of right, to all applicants whose

         24  projects qualify under law.

         25                 The program is administered by the
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          2  New York City Department of Finance, which is

          3  required to report to the Council on April 1 of each

          4  year on the status of the program.

          5                 According to the last report by the

          6  Department of Finance, the Council for Fiscal Year

          7   '97, there were approximately 2,500 projects either

          8  receiving or eligible for exemption from real estate

          9  taxes, including 2,078 projects receiving exemptions

         10  vow that 91.2 million and 385 that were eligible.

         11                 The Department of Finance's report

         12  indicated that 92 percent or 1,921 of the project

         13  receiving ICIP benefits were located outside of

         14  Manhattan, 60 percent in Queens and in Brooklyn, 33

         15  percent in Staten Island and the Bronx, with an

         16  estimated exemption value of 66.2 million.

         17                 The report further indicates that 86

         18  percent of the projects were used for commercial

         19  purposes and 14 percent for industrial purposes,

         20  with 84 percent with construction costs of less than

         21  a million.

         22                 This bill seeks to extend certain

         23  provisions of ICIP, which expired on June 30th,

         24  1999, and it has to be reauthorized by the State and

         25  the City Council.
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          2                 These provisions include the

          3  extending the certification of eligibility

          4  applications for benefits under the program.

          5                 The designation of area of Manhattan

          6  lying south of 23rd Street and south of 59th Street

          7  to 23rd Street as "renovation exemption areas," and

          8  the designation of area of Manhattan lying south of

          9  Murray Street and encompassing lower Manhattan as a

         10   "new construction exemption area."

         11                 The State Senate and the Assembly

         12  passed the reprinted bill on June 16th, and the

         13  Governor signed on June 30th. Local Law 609 mirrors

         14  A-3000, Assembly A-3000, in extending the current

         15  ICIP provisions four years to June 2003, and

         16  requires the Boundary Commission to meet in 1999.

         17                 Today we will hear from the

         18  Administration on the effectiveness of ICIP, and the

         19  need to continue its provisions.

         20                 In addition, we will hear from

         21  several witnesses about ICIP to determine if in the

         22  future we need to amend this legislation.

         23                 At this time I would like to

         24  recognize any member of the Committee who would like

         25  to comment on the record.  Fine. Councilwoman.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I don't

          3  understand what that means, are these people going

          4  to testify or not?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes, they

          6  are.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Oh, all

          8  right, thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  We're joined

         10  by Councilwoman Clarke, also, from Brooklyn.

         11                 Ma'am, would you state your name for

         12  the record, please?

         13                 MS. KENT:  I am Liza Kent, Senior

         14  Vice- President for Economic Analysis and Planning

         15  at the New York City Economic Development

         16  Corporation.  I'm joined today by Warren Hyman,

         17  Director of Property Exemption Unit at the

         18  Department of Finance.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Go ahead.

         20                 MS. KENT:  Good afternoon, Mr.

         21  Chairman and members of the Council.  Thank you for

         22  this opportunity to appear before the City Council's

         23  Economic Development Committee to speak in support

         24  of Intro. 609, renewal of the Industrial and

         25  Commercial Incentive Program, known as ICIP.
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          2                 The ICIP is an as of right real

          3  estate benefit program for eligible industrial and

          4  commercial construction, modernization,

          5  rehabilitation, or expansion projects throughout New

          6  York City.  It is one of the City's most important

          7  economic development tools.  By providing real

          8  property tax exemptions and for industrial projects

          9  only abatements, the program encourages building

         10  renovations in new construction in order for the

         11  City to retain and create jobs.

         12                 ICIP encourages the improvement of

         13  buildings to protect and expand the City's tax base.

         14    It encourages private investment in communities in

         15  all boroughs throughout New York City, lowers the

         16  cost of doing business, helping New York City

         17  compete for jobs within the region and help small

         18  and large businesses alike.  ICIP provides the

         19  deepest benefits to commercial projects in distress

         20  areas and to industrial projects Citywide.

         21  Commercial projects in Manhattan, south of 59th

         22  Street, are eligible to receive only the most

         23  limited benefits.

         24                 The bill before us proposes to extend

         25  expiring ICIP benefits for four years to the year
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          2  2003, requires the temporary incentive area Boundary

          3  Commission to meet in 1999 to designate special

          4  exemption areas and immense the training program to

          5  be implemented by persons engaged in construction

          6  work to provide that persons eligible for the

          7  training program shall be economically disadvantaged

          8  persons enrolled or eligible to be enrolled in

          9  training programs, approved by the New York State

         10  Department of Labor with particular reference to

         11  City residents.

         12                 Benefits offered under ICIP for

         13  commercial and industrial construction projects, in

         14  particular for those in special exemption areas, are

         15  in important to our City because they spur

         16  investment in lower- income areas and induce

         17  development in under utilized sections of the City.

         18                 I have a description of the benefits,

         19  is it helpful to go through the benefits?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I think we're

         21  quite familiar with the benefits, if there are any

         22  Council members that want to hear them again?  No, I

         23  see no, continue your testimony.

         24                 MS. KENT:  Sure.  The Department of

         25  Finance's Fiscal Year 1998 annual report on ICIP has
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          2  been delayed due to technical problems, but is

          3  expected to be published later this quarter.

          4  Attached are tentative FY '98 Program Statistics and

          5  limited summary data for FY 2000, for your

          6  information.  It has been prepared by the Department

          7  of Finance specifically for this hearing.

          8                 Program highlights include the

          9  following:

         10                 Continuing the trend which began in

         11  Fiscal '96, benefits rose for the third consecutive

         12  year to $100 million in FY '98.  This reflects the

         13  importance of the ICIP Program and the strength of

         14  the City's economy.

         15                 The 295 additional projects receiving

         16  benefits in FY '98 constituted the second largest

         17  single year increase since the program began.  The

         18  majority of projects are located outside Manhattan.

         19  For FY '98 2,221 projects, over 94 percent of all

         20  projects receiving exemption, were located in

         21  boroughs other than Manhattan.   This represents an

         22  increase of over 300 projects since last year.

         23                 Rehabilitations has a percentage of

         24  projects receiving exemption benefits continue to

         25  climb.  In FY '98 rehabilitations and alterations of
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          2  existing structures accounted for 52 percent of the

          3  projects receiving exemptions, up from 48 percent in

          4  FY '97.

          5                 Simultaneously, deferral exemptions'

          6  benefits continue to decline, for FY 2000 only five

          7  deferral exemption projects continue to receive

          8  benefits for a total $46,891 or less than 1 percent

          9  of all benefits granted.

         10                 Industrial projects are receiving

         11  abatement benefits for the fourth year in FY 2000.

         12  Two hundred and eight projects will receive

         13  $5,840,000 in abatement benefits, which provides

         14  money for operating expenses and capital

         15  improvements in FY 2000.  That is up from nine

         16  projects receiving only $398,000 in FY '97.

         17  Abatement benefits are granted only after completion

         18  of a project so the number of projects and volume of

         19  projects receiving benefits are expected to see an

         20  upward trend in future years.  Abatement benefits

         21  are largely clustered in industrial areas in

         22  Brooklyn and Queens, primarily in Red Hook, Long

         23  Island City, Williamsburg, and Greenpoint.

         24                 Prior to enactment of the abatement

         25  program, industrial projects did not participate in
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          2  the ICIP Program in great numbers.  In FY '95, for

          3  example, only 210 industrial projects received

          4  exemption benefits worth $3.8 million.  In FY '98,

          5  only three years later, we had 76 more projects

          6  receiving exemption benefits worth 40 percent more

          7  in addition to the abatement benefits previously

          8  described.

          9                 The following chart shows, in fact,

         10  that the abatement program has grown from FY '97

         11  where there were nine projects to FY 2000 where

         12  there are 208 abatement projects, and shows the

         13  distribution of industrial abatements by borough.

         14  Queens had 65 projects with a total benefit of over

         15  $5 million, and Brooklyn is second with 114 projects

         16  and benefits totaling $3,672,000.

         17                 For FY '98, 2,002 are commercial

         18  projects, and 371 are industrial projects.  Projects

         19  run the gamut ranging from small retail developments

         20  to owner occupied industrial buildings and large

         21  commercial offices.  Based on data for FY '98,

         22  again, more than 84 percent of all ICIP Projects

         23  have construction costs of less than $1 million,

         24  which shows that the program provides tax relief to

         25  modest projects in their crucial, early years.
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          2                 These statistics help demonstrate how

          3  broadly and beneficially ICIP is utilized throughout

          4  New York City.  It is for this reason that we

          5  recommend approval for extension of this vital

          6  program.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

          9  Do you have anything to say, Sir?

         10                 MR. HYMAN:  I'm here to assist EDC in

         11  answering questions and explaining any of the data.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         13  Council Member Fisher.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Maybe I'm

         15  misreading these figures, but it looks like Brooklyn

         16  did pretty pathetically under this program.  It

         17  looks like a total exempt tax is of about $14

         18  million, less than the Bronx, far less than Queens

         19  and Manhattan, so slightly above Staten Island.  And

         20  given that there has been statements publicly by the

         21  Brooklyn Borough President's Office about EDC's

         22  either failure or inability to attract tenants to

         23  Brooklyn, I was wondering whether or not I'm reading

         24  this accurately.  Is there some reason why Brooklyn

         25  seems to be faring so poorly, particularly in
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          2  relationship to the boroughs outside of Manhattan,

          3  and also in looking through the charts that we were

          4  just handed, it looks like there were some boroughs

          5  where the tax exemption to job ratio seems to be

          6  slightly out of whack?  I mean in Queens, at least,

          7  you have 30 percent or 31 percent of the Citywide

          8  exemption pool and about 30 percent of the jobs, but

          9  in Staten Island 11.5 percent of the pool results

         10  only in less than 7 percent of the jobs.  I just

         11  picked those out because I happened to see them, but

         12  I'm largely, you know, more interested in the

         13  question of why you think that Brooklyn, except in

         14  the industrial area, where we have a lot of

         15  industrial space, but why Brooklyn seems to have

         16  fair so poorly under this program, at least, as it

         17  is currently administered?

         18                 MR. HYMAN:  In actuality Brooklyn has

         19  fair very well in terms of the number of projects

         20  that are receiving benefits under ICIP.  The dollar

         21  value of those benefits are dependent upon the type

         22  of real estate that is in each particular borough.

         23  Brooklyn tends to have smaller projects relative to

         24  Manhattan, for example.  So the value associated,

         25  the exempt value associated with those projects tend
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          2  to be smaller.

          3                 For example, also, in terms of EDC,

          4  certain projects that may in other boroughs be

          5  eligible for ICIP benefits may be receiving benefits

          6  under a different exemption program.  For example,

          7  MetroTech, which was new construction for the most

          8  part, was receiving benefits, is exempt from taxes,

          9  but not under the ICIP Program.  A similar office

         10  building may be exempt in Manhattan under the ICIP

         11  Program.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  But MetroTech

         13  was substantially completed prior to this

         14  Administration, and, in fact, the only significant

         15  in the MetroTech Complex since this Administration

         16  took over had been public sector buildings, and you

         17  haven't, in fact, recruited any significant private

         18  sector tenants to Brooklyn since this Administration

         19  took over.  So I don't think that the MetroTech

         20  example is necessarily your best example, but,

         21  nonetheless, I understand that a lot of projects and

         22  a lot of small projects, and most of them seem to

         23  be, or a lot of them have seem to be in the

         24  industrial part of that, which is fine.  What I

         25  don't understand is, is why there seems to be such a
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          2  small number of new construction projects in the

          3  largest borough, and, you know, is there something

          4  about the Bronx, or Queens, or even Staten Island

          5  that is more advantageous to Brooklyn than Brooklyn,

          6  or is it just the way that you have marketed them?

          7                 MR. HYMAN:  In terms of benefits the

          8  reason for bringing up MetroTech is that if it was

          9  an ICIP project, it would still be receiving

         10  benefits, despite the fact that is was done prior to

         11  this Administration and it would be reflected in

         12  this report.  The nature of new construction versus

         13  rehabilitation is a function of the market place,

         14  and I assume that Staten Island and areas of Queens,

         15  such as at College Point, may have more vacant land

         16  that is available for projects.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Do you know

         18  that?

         19                 MR. HYMAN:  I'm making an assumption,

         20  as I said.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Okay, and are

         22  you involved with the marketing?

         23                 MR. HYMAN:  I am not involved with

         24  the marketing of ICIPs, except to the extent that I

         25  go out and speak to local development corporations
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          2  upon request.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  And how many

          4  times have you spoken in Brooklyn?

          5                 MR. HYMAN:  I recently spoke in

          6  Brooklyn, I believe, it's the Red Hook Chamber of

          7  Commerce in the last two months.  We tend to go out

          8  upon request six to ten times a year.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Are you

         10  familiar with EDC's effort to market to potential

         11  constructors or tenants in Brooklyn?

         12                 MR. HYMAN:  No, I am not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Okay, so

         14  maybe we can EDC to respond to the question?

         15                 MS. KENT:  And the question is,

         16  again?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  The question

         18  is, the Brooklyn Borough President has said publicly

         19  on more than one occasion that there has been a

         20  failure by EDC to aggressively market Brooklyn in

         21  recent years.  And I would like to know whether or

         22  not that accounts, in part, for what seems to be an

         23  under representation of Brooklyn in terms of the

         24  benefits awarded under this program?

         25                 MS. KENT:  I'm going to have to
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          2  guess.  I don't think they're related.  We are

          3  working on a marketing plan that will benefit

          4  Brooklyn, as well as other areas of New York City.

          5  But ICIP is not really targeted, it is not exactly

          6  or primarily an attraction tool, it's designed to

          7  retain jobs and hopefully to attract more.  But the

          8  marketing program will be targeted to attraction.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Do you have

         10  an explanation different than the one that was

         11  offered as to why Brooklyn with 2.5 million people

         12  with large areas that are available for industrial

         13  and commercial use seems to have fair poorly under

         14  this program in comparison to other boroughs, and,

         15  again, take Manhattan out of the equation?

         16                 MS. KENT:  No, I don't.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I think that

         18  is a very good question, Councilman, but the, one of

         19  the answers from the panel here that it is a

         20  function of the marketplace is very well taken by

         21  the Chair.  Now your question, Brooklyn does have

         22  tremendous amounts of industrial space that are

         23  vacant, et cetera.  For example, on Staten Island I

         24  think Cranes, last month's Cranes had indicated that

         25  Staten Island, a borough of 400,000 people versus 2
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          2  million from Brooklyn, - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Two and one-

          4  half million.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Two and one-

          6  half million, I stand corrected, is one of the

          7  fastest growing counties and fifth largest I think

          8  in the country.  So when you compare Staten Island

          9  with populations as compared to Brooklyn and vacant

         10  space, and the types of ICIP that is being presented

         11  to Staten Island, it might be a function of the

         12  marketplace, maybe it's just economics, which is a

         13  very difficult thing - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Well, maybe

         15  it is politics when you look at two of the political

         16  relationships between certain elected officials and

         17  other elected officials.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I understand

         19  what you are saying, but I would more or less

         20  believe that it is a function of the economics of

         21  the day.

         22                 Thank you, Councilman.

         23                 Councilwoman Eldridge.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I think we

         25  have another version of politics also in looking at
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          2  Manhattan, which certainly, it is a little confusing

          3  to talk about the market when we know that- -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I didn't say

          5  politics, I said economics.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I'm adding

          7  to him, when we know that office, I mean, I'm

          8  speechless as always that we include Manhattan in

          9  this project, in this legislation, and I fully

         10  support the legislation for the other boroughs.  But

         11  I think in Manhattan there is no need to assist the

         12  owners of property to renovate when they are already

         13  getting, I mean, there are so few vacancies and

         14  there is so much, such high rentals.  I don't

         15  understand what we're still doing to incense here.

         16                 I noticed in the legislation, and I

         17  don't understand it, it's a little difficult because

         18  it is renovation exemption areas and then it's

         19  exemption from taxes and sometimes the exemption,

         20  the word exemption makes it more confusing, but one

         21  of the areas in the Borough of Manhattan shall be

         22  renovation exemption areas, and then we list several

         23  areas, one of them is, and we're amending, we're

         24  changing the date from '99 to 2003 in line with the

         25  fact that this is an extension for four years.  And
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          2  so we're doing that in the Manhattan line south of

          3  the center line of 23rd Street, but the second area

          4  was not extended beyond 1995, it says as of July 1,

          5   '92 and until January 31, 1995, the area in the

          6  borough line south of the center line of 96th Street

          7  and north of the center line of 23rd Street.  Am I

          8  understanding that correctly that we are now going

          9  back to giving this exemption there?

         10                 MR. HYMAN:  There is a little note

         11  there, there are no and there will not be benefits

         12  between 59th and 96th Street in Manhattan for

         13  commercial projects.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Well, then

         15  why is it reading that way in the legislation, does

         16  anybody know and can you look at the legislation and

         17  tell me, it's on page 3?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I do recall

         19  that the way the legislation was written, initially

         20  had to do, there was a differentiation between 23rd

         21  to 59th Street and below 23rd Street to what is

         22  known as the lower Manhattan area.  I believe this

         23  is a vestige of that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  This is

         25  between 23rd and 96th Street.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I believe the

          3  legislation does talk about 59th Street in there, if

          4  you would give me a moment to find the legislation,

          5  I will be happy to point that out.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Do you see

          7  where I'm talking, is that just an error?

          8                 MR. TURNER:  This is Todd Turner,

          9  Counsel for the Economic Development Committee.  The

         10  two sections that are involved are two separate

         11  areas.  There is one area between 23rd and 59th

         12  Street that would be a renovation exemption area

         13  that would be extended for four years.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Which means

         15  that there is no benefit for renovation in that

         16  area, is that what that means?

         17                 MR. TURNER:  That there is a benefit

         18  for renovation in that area.  Then there is a second

         19  zone below 23rd Street, I mean, excuse me, below

         20  Murray Street encompassing the lower Manhattan plan

         21  that would also be, just to make a correction, it is

         22  not a renovation area, but - -

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  So what

         24  this legislation is saying - -

         25                 MR. TURNER: - -  a new construction
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          2  area, which would include the smart buildings that

          3  the Council when it last passed the ICIP Program in

          4  1995 included.  So those two areas would be extended

          5  for the four additional years.  Anything above 59th

          6  Street to 96th Street is not included as it was then

          7   - -

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Is not

          9  included, I see.

         10                 MR. TURNER: - -  in 1995 when it

         11  expired.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I just,

         13  seeing all the redevelopment and the moving to the

         14  23rd Street area, it makes, it's senseless, and, I

         15  mean, are you saying that the justification of this

         16  policy is to keep jobs or attract jobs in that area?

         17    We don't need that kind of policy and we're

         18  foregoing by the commercial taxes that we're

         19  exempting in Manhattan, what are we foregoing?  A

         20  lot of money, it's the renovation, what, what does

         21  this considered a special need area or renovation

         22  regular area, is that what this is?

         23                 MR. TURNER:  This will be part of the

         24  renovation area.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Regular
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          2  area, so it's $17 million in Manhattan?

          3                 MR. TURNER:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Seventeen

          5  million dollars of tax revenue that we're just

          6  giving away, and that is not including the part of

          7  lower Manhattan which is also, I think the recipient

          8  of most confused economic or taxation policies that

          9  we have, because we're incensing to renovate from

         10  commercial buildings to residential buildings; is

         11  that right?  Aren't we offering not under ICIP, but

         12  under other things where- -

         13                 MR. TURNER:  Under Section 421(g) of

         14  the Real Property Tax Law.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: - -  we're

         16  offering heavy incentives to renovate residential

         17  buildings to commercial, and at the same time we're

         18  offering incentives to, we're fighting each other in

         19  this area, and it seems to me that it is foregoing a

         20  total almost because the only special need area is

         21  $973,000 in Manhattan and the rest of it comes to

         22  over $27 million of tax revenue.

         23                 That is the reason that I always vote

         24  against this legislation, and some day I hope that

         25  we won't, I will see a Council that will really look
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          2  at it a little more clearly.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

          5  thank you.

          6                 MS. KENT:  Could I speak to the

          7  question of Manhattan benefits?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes, go

          9  ahead.

         10                 MS. KENT:  Okay, I will be brief.

         11  One thing that we can accomplish with ICIP is to

         12  reduce the cost of business in New York City.  As it

         13  happens the cost of doing business here is higher

         14  than in any other region in the United States, and

         15  it is about 30 percent higher than the U.S. Average.

         16                 Within the region we see stiff

         17  competition for construction firms, jobs, and

         18  business.  To be more specific on top of lower

         19  expenses Connecticut and New Jersey are offering

         20  aggressive incentives.  For example, New Jersey now

         21  has approximately 2,250,000 square feet of water

         22  front, Class A space underdevelopment, with

         23  approximately 8 million additional square footage

         24  for future development.  Asking rents are

         25  approximately $25 to $30 per square foot.  And
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          2  additional new job incentives amount to $10 to $12

          3  per square foot, making the net rent on the water

          4  front $15 to $18 per square foot.  That is less than

          5  half the asking rent for comparable space in New

          6  York City.

          7                 So what we're really trying to do is

          8  recognize the increased business costs in New York,

          9  the increased construction costs, and bring down the

         10  cost of improving and building facilities to the

         11  point where developers do not have to have

         12  exceedingly high rents in order to break even on a

         13  project.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I'm flatted

         18  that you came with a prepared statement to answer

         19  this question.  I'm sorry, but it's still, I don't

         20  consider it to be convincing, and especially from

         21  experience of those of us who are living and working

         22  in the Borough of Manhattan with the costs of the

         23  developers being able to lower the costs.  I think

         24  it increases the developers' profits, but thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,
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          2  Councilwoman, and thank you.  And now we have four

          3  people to testify, Robert Altman from Barton and

          4  Zasky, and Michael Slatlery from the Real Estate

          5  Board at New York, please, come forward, Slatlery,

          6  Michael Slatlery, and then after them we will have

          7  Andrew Hyman from Bronx Overall Economic Development

          8  Corporation, and Seth Bornstein from Queens Borough

          9  President's Office.  Mr. Altman.

         10                 MR. ALTMAN:  Good afternoon.  My name

         11  is Robert Altman.  I'm an attorney with the law

         12  firm, Barton and Zasky.  I have submitted a prepared

         13  statement, and so I am not going to read it, and you

         14  can read it at your leisure.  I will be quick.

         15                 I am here to testify in favor of

         16  Intro. No. 609.  I have had some experience,

         17  particularly with industrial clients, and often I

         18  have to go out and meet with them to discuss what

         19  the manufacturing abatement is all about.  And you

         20  don't have an opportunity often to hear from the

         21  people who are the recipients of these benefits.

         22  But I wanted to say that when I first meet with

         23  them, they often say to me, the City is willing to

         24  do this for me? And they don't believe it and it

         25  takes a lot of convincing of them to believe that
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          2  this program exists for them.  And it has been

          3  particularly helpful for those people who are in the

          4  manufacturing sector.

          5                 The second thing I would like to

          6  point out is that quick passes of this legislation

          7  is very important.  Even though we have some ideas

          8  for improving the ICIP Program, the previous

          9  legislation put in a, almost a sunset provision for

         10  projects that have been sitting in the pipeline for

         11  a number of years. Previously, if you had filed a

         12  preliminary application before the deadline, you

         13  were part of the program no matter when your

         14  construction started.  If you submit an application

         15  before June 30th, you had, in fact, until July 31st

         16  to start your construction, or else your project is

         17  then no longer part of the program.  So for a number

         18  of people who I deal with, who are looking to try to

         19  get their construction before July 31st, they were

         20  unable to do so, and so they are anxiously awaiting

         21  passage of this legislation.

         22                 Finally, I would like to put in a

         23  word in favor of the renovation exemption benefit

         24  and the other benefits for new construction in

         25  Manhattan.   I have the opportunity to work in a
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          2  Midtown office building, which is currently

          3  undergoing a renovation, and having that renovation

          4  has given us a number of different benefits, a

          5  number of buildings which previously had very slow

          6  internet access have, in fact, upgraded their

          7  communication systems and have done a number of

          8  things within the building, which has improved our

          9  office space, and we're very happy that those

         10  benefits are available to incense these owners to do

         11  the construction work necessary to have a wide

         12  variety of choice of Class A, top notch office space

         13  in the Midtown area.

         14                 So while looking at the numbers maybe

         15  an argument that some views against the renovation

         16  exemption, as a tenant, we are very happy that the

         17  renovation exemption exists.  It allows us to have a

         18  wider variety of choice, and additionally, I would

         19  say it just increases the marketplace for the type

         20  of office space which is going to become

         21  increasingly important in the 21st Century.  And if

         22  you did not have that, times we would be looking at

         23  a smaller amount of space in which to choose which

         24  would probably cause rents to go up even higher.  So

         25  I think that is an important factor when you
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          2  consider extending the benefits under this program.

          3                 And in generally speaking, we hope

          4  that the Committee passes this legislation today,

          5  and the full Council passes it later on this month.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Altman.  Mr. Slatlery.

          9                 MR. SLATLERY:  Good afternoon.  I'm

         10  Michael Slatlery, Senior Vice- President, Real

         11  Estate Board of New York, and we're here today to

         12  support the ICIP extension, including the amended

         13  language that establishes a training program for

         14  economically disadvantaged persons.

         15                 New York City real property taxes,

         16  especially for office buildings are one of the

         17  highest in the nation.  ICIP continues to be a

         18  needed and mutual economic development tool to

         19  offset high property taxes and to promote capital

         20  investment for rehabilitation of new construction.

         21  A major concern for an owner considering a major

         22  renovation of their building is whether they are

         23  restoring a loss value due to depreciation, such as

         24  replacing a roof or windows, or adding value with

         25  modern systems, such as elevators, electrical
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          2  capacity and security, is how much will property

          3  taxes increase.  In either circumstance the owner is

          4  concerned that a tax increase will raise operating

          5  costs above market rents.  ICIP benefits for

          6  rehabilitation mitigates this concern in the short-

          7  term run, and permits an owner to pursue the

          8  building improvements without worrying about an

          9  immediate increase in taxes as the result of the

         10  capital investing.

         11                 For instance, in less than two years

         12  following the modification to permit renovations in

         13  Midtown in 1992, 36 properties invested an estimated

         14  $500 million to renovate their space.  This capital

         15  investment was made while the industry, the City,

         16  and the country were in a recession.  In this way, I

         17  think the program provides an important incentive to

         18  improve existing property in prosperous and less

         19  prosperous times.

         20                 New construction entails greater

         21  economic risk than renovation.  Typically large

         22  amounts of capital are invested for a few years

         23  before the property can generate a financial return

         24  that is expected to cover construction and operating

         25  expenses, including property taxes.  The financial
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          2  problem with new construction is most acute in Lower

          3  Manhattan where a $15 gap between asking rent and

          4  minimum rent required to operate the building is not

          5  completely closed by the ICIP tax exemption

          6  Nevertheless, the program is an important component

          7  in the expansion of commercial space in Lower

          8  Manhattan, an expansion necessary for this area to

          9  compete successfully with New Jersey.

         10                 Whether a project is a renovation or

         11  new construction, ICIP encourages capital investment

         12  that will keep and attract tenants and that

         13  ultimately leads to an expansion of the real

         14  property tax base, the largest and most stable space

         15  in the City tax system.  The amended training

         16  language reconciles language with the law, with

         17  language in agreements between labor and industry,

         18  and we believe that this amendment will enhance

         19  construction and employment opportunities for

         20  economic disadvantaged persons.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  And thank

         23  you.  Thank you, gentlemen.

         24                 Now we will have Andrew Hyman, Bronx

         25  Overall Economic Overall Development Corporation and
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          2  Seth Bornstein.  Yes, gentlemen.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  The longer

          4  you talk, the more at risk you put the outcome.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  He really

          6  didn't mean to say that.  He said it jokingly.  Yes,

          7  gentlemen.

          8                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  I use to live in your

          9  district, Council member.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  It was

         11  just a joke, I love the Bronx.

         12                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  Okay, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Go ahead.

         14                 MR. ANDREW HYMAN:  Committee Chairman

         15  O'Donovan, members of the Committee, good afternoon.

         16    My name is Andrew Hyman, no relation to Warren

         17  Hyman of the Department of Finance, and I am the

         18  General Counsel of the Bronx Overall Economic

         19  Development Corporation or BOEDC.  I am appearing

         20  today to express a support of BOEDC for Intro. 609

         21  which will extend the Industrial and Incentive

         22  Program or ICIP for another four years.

         23                 As many of you may know, the process

         24  has undergone an economical revival over the past

         25  decade.  In the last five years alone our borough
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          2  has seen an increase in private sector jobs at

          3  nearly 10 percent.  And the Bronx has also

          4  experienced an industrial resurgence with the

          5  creation of 10,000 jobs in the top 10 industrial

          6  sectors over the past five years.

          7                 BOEDC has played a prominent role in

          8  our borough's economic revitalization.  As

          9  Administrator of the Bronx portion of the New York

         10  Empowerment Zone in May, we have provided nearly $11

         11  million in financing commitments to businesses we're

         12  locating to or expanding in the Bronx, and this

         13  financing is expected to leverage over $30 million

         14  in additional funding is expected to create and

         15  retain over 1,000 job openings.

         16                 Along with the benefits and

         17  incentives available through the Federal Empowerment

         18  Zone and New York State Economic Development Zone's

         19  programs, as well as below market rate SPA- 504

         20  financing from the Bronx Initiative Corporation, the

         21  tax exemptions and abatements available through ICIP

         22  are an important arrow in the economic development

         23  quiver of BOEDC.  By being able to stable real

         24  estate taxes from anywhere between 4 and 16 years,

         25  companies are encouraged to make real property
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          2  improvements to make it possible for them to expand

          3  and modernize their facilities and construct new

          4  facilities.  This leads to more jobs for Bronx

          5  residents giving them an opportunity to share in the

          6  longest running economic recovery in the history of

          7  the United States.

          8                 Accordingly, BOEDC supports the four-

          9  year of ICIP under Intro. 609, and additionally we

         10  urge the City Department of Finance to complete and

         11  submit to the City Council reports on the

         12  utilization of the program, which are required by

         13  law, but which have not been filed over the past two

         14  years.  We believe that reports are critical in

         15  determining whether each of the five boroughs of our

         16  City are receiving their fair share of ICIP benefits

         17  and they suggest changes that should be made to the

         18  program to promote its utilization and maximize its

         19  effectiveness.

         20                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         21  comment on interest in Intro. 609, and have a good

         22  day.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  Good afternoon,

         25  Chairman and Committee Council.  I'm Seth Bornstein,
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          2  Director of Economic Development for the Queens

          3  Borough President Claire Shulman.  In this capacity

          4  I work to retain and attract businesses to Queens

          5  County.

          6                 One of the most important economic

          7  development incentives is the Industrial and

          8  Commercial Incentive Program.  In FY '97, the latest

          9  available figures we had until today,  Queens

         10  businesses received benefits of over $28 million

         11  which represents over 700 commercial and industrial

         12  businesses.

         13                 The ICIP is one of the most

         14  successful tools that we have in attracting and

         15  keeping businesses.  Even as our local economy

         16  improves, it is essential that we make competitive

         17  with other regions.  While I am in the front row of

         18  cheerleaders for doing business in New York City, we

         19  have the best market, the best resources and by far

         20  the best labor available in the country, in fact, we

         21  face serious competition from other areas.

         22                 I speak to manufacturers constantly,

         23  and when it comes down to it, you can do it cheaper

         24  elsewhere, land costs, labor costs and energy costs

         25  are lower in many places. Manufacturers need to be
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          2  educated in the ways to overcome this. The ICIP is

          3  the basic benefit we can provide them with.

          4                 And I just want to add in marketing

          5  the program, we work with the Department of Finance

          6  and EDC to help market it properly, because it's the

          7  small businesses that need to know about this

          8  program, the ones that can't hire the high- priced

          9  law firms to do it for them.  We want to work with

         10  the EDC and DOF to make sure that people know about

         11  the program.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  And thank

         14  you.  If there are no further questions - -  yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I just want

         16  to ask you, there are two questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:   One is,

         19  when we write legislation and we specify the title

         20  of the person to be on a board, as in this

         21  legislation, we changed it, how does that become an

         22  official title?  I mean, we're changing it from the

         23  Deputy Mayor, evidently, it used to be Finance and

         24  Economic Development, it's now changed to the Deputy

         25  Mayor for Economic Development and Planning, why is
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          2  that put into legislation since it seems to me that

          3  is a Mayoral prerogative of naming who he is going

          4  to name? I mean, of changing the title, why do we

          5  put the title in, why isn't it just the designee of

          6  the Mayor?  I mean, I don't even know when the

          7  Deputy Mayor became the Deputy Mayor of Economic

          8  Development and Planning, and what does that mean,

          9  does the Finance Department still report to him?

         10                 MR. TURNER:  I can't answer

         11  specifically.  I mean, obviously that was a question

         12  since we had the Administration representatives

         13  here, that we should have asked.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I should

         15  have asked them, I meant to, yeah.

         16                 MR. TURNER:  But the original

         17  legislation establishing the Boundary Commission

         18  designated by name and title, or by title, excuse

         19  me, who was to be on the Boundary Commission.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Which

         21  Deputy Mayor is it? Is it Rudy Washington or is it

         22  Randy Levine?

         23                 MR. TURNER:  It is my understanding

         24  that the title is currently held by Mr. Levine.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  What is
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          2  Rudy Washington's title?  I thought he was the

          3  Deputy Commissioner of Economic Development.

          4                 MR. TURNER:  No, of Business Services

          5  and - -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  For

          7  Planning now, well, it seems to me it's silly to put

          8  those titles into legislation, and I know it's too

          9  late.

         10                 My other question is we have heard,

         11  several people have referred to the employment

         12  program, and is that the program that appears on

         13  page 10, which is simply saying that persons

         14  employed in the construction work shall implement a

         15  training program for economically disadvantage

         16  persons, enrolled or eligible to be enrolled in

         17  training programs approved by the Department of

         18  Labor; is that the extent?

         19                 MR. TURNER:  Under that section, the

         20  Department of Finance is required to issue rules

         21  with respect to certain requirements for those

         22  persons who receive benefits.  One of those is, for

         23  those persons receiving benefits to implement this

         24  type of training program, so that is included, the

         25  additional language would include those that are
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          2  improved or regulated by the State Department of

          3  Labor that way.  That is what the State Legislature

          4  included them as.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  And did

          6  they have more specific guidelines of what the

          7  training programs looked like, I mean, is that out

          8  of those regulations?

          9                 MR. TURNER:  That is part of the

         10  regulations, right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes, Ms.

         13  Clarke.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman.  I just want to follow up on my

         16  colleague's question, then who monitors to make sure

         17  that that program takes place and that, in fact,

         18  there are these trainees or whoever they are, who

         19  makes sure that that occurs once the designation is

         20  made and the development starts taking place?

         21                 MR. TURNER:  The Department of

         22  Finance is responsible for monitoring and

         23  implementing the program.  There is a Department of

         24  Labor Services that is supposed to assist the

         25  Department of Finance with respect to those
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          2  provisions, with respect to training programs and

          3  employment- related data from people who are

          4  receiving benefits.  Once again, that was a question

          5  that we should have asked the Administration.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  No, the fact

          7  that we pass the legislation, should the Council

          8  have some oversight responsibility to make sure that

          9  once there is funding, once there is development,

         10  that they are fulfilling those rules, regulations as

         11  is written in the law?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Absolutely.

         13  This particular law, they are required to report to

         14  us on April 1st of each year on the status of the

         15  program, and any other time that we would like them

         16  to report to us other than April 1st, if they don't

         17  make the April 1st deadline, whatever.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  They didn't

         19  make the deadline this year.  They still haven't

         20  reported to us.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  They will,

         22  believe me.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Yes, I'm

         24  sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  All right,
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          2  thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  All right, no

          4  further questions, my colleagues, we will call for a

          5  vote on this, and then we will discuss the market

          6  bill legislation and it's amendments.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Excuse me,

          8  Mr. Chairman?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Are they

         11  supposed to have reported by April 1st and didn't,

         12  and haven't done to date?  Is that what you just

         13  said?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  They

         15  testified that they had some problems.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  They

         17  testified that they had some problems on the

         18  figures, compiling the figures for this particular

         19  program.  So we will ask them back again right after

         20  the summer recess.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Okay,

         22  thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  All right,

         24  Counsel, let's call for a vote?

         25                 MR. TURNER:  Council Member
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          2  DiBrienza.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  May I be

          4  excused to explain my vote?  Historically, this

          5  program was extremely problematic in that it

          6  provided enormous benefits for construction of

          7  office buildings not tied to the actual creation of

          8  jobs, but to the real estate owner.  It seems to me,

          9  incentives based on the number of jobs created is a

         10  better way to go.  Having tried that battle with my

         11  colleague, Council Member Eldridge, unsuccessfully,

         12  I continually looked at the ICIP to try to find a

         13  better rational, and as, for example, the talk of

         14  the industrial side grew, I thought well perhaps

         15  that did, but while there are more industrial

         16  projects, the overall dollar amount is not

         17  significant relative to the major office buildings.

         18                 Then when I saw another opportunity

         19  to make sense out of it, we extended it to the

         20  Downtown area and including conflicting benefits.

         21  You get a lot of benefits if you throw out

         22  businesses and convert your building to residential,

         23  you also get a lot of benefits if you fix up your

         24  building in a market that is booming.

         25                 So it seems to me it continues to be

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  problematic. If this were an IIT, perhaps,

          3  Industrial Incentive Program, so that whereas the

          4  industrial industry, out- of- borough manufacturing

          5  receive the benefits, maybe that would be the way to

          6  make sense out of it and separate out the real

          7  estate development aspects, because many of the

          8  projects in the boroughs make sense, I'm sure that

          9  is what some of the smaller borough folks were

         10  referring to.

         11                 In any event, we cannot separate our

         12  votes with a question, so, regrettably, in line of

         13  that, I vote no.

         14                 MR. TURNER:  Council Member Eldridge.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I vote no.

         16                 MR. TURNER:  Council Member Fisher.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Yes.

         18                 MR. TURNER:  Council Member Clarke.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  May I be

         20  excused to explain my vote?  Having weighed the pros

         21  and cons as was placed before us, and although I

         22  feel that Brooklyn gets short changed every time.

         23  You're shaking your head?  Well, you're from Staten

         24  Island, so I could talk for Brooklyn, Mr. Chairman.

         25  I see that there are benefits to be had by it, and
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          2  therefore, I vote yes.

          3                 MR. TURNER:  Council Member

          4  Rodriguez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  May I be

          6  excused to explain my vote?  I have the same

          7  concerns that Council Member DiBrienza has, and that

          8  is that as I look at this list, I notice that a

          9  great percentage of the benefits go to the

         10  commercial establishments.  And I represent an area

         11  in Brooklyn that has quite a bit of industrial

         12  areas, and I really haven't seen the effort by the

         13  City's Economic Development Corporation to go out

         14  there and make sure that the communities that I

         15  represent, and she actually mentioned Red Hook, but

         16  I haven't had a chance to ask her about it, and

         17  specifically where in Red Hook have they

         18  concentrated their efforts, because they may have

         19  met with the Chamber of Commerce but I don't think

         20  the message is getting there.

         21                 However, when I ran for public office

         22  I said I would do what I can to spill economic

         23  development, and though, this seems a little skewed

         24  in that a lot of the benefits are going to, I guess,

         25  projects that are not the ones in my district, some
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          2  of them are, and for those few that are I think we

          3  have to protect them, and just like Council Member

          4  DiBrienza said, if it would have been an IIP

          5  Program, it would have been a lot easier to say yes

          6  to, and I would have said yes the first time I was

          7  asked.

          8                 This time I had to really sit here

          9  and think, but when you look at the pros and the

         10  cons and you see that there is some economic

         11  development projects going on in Brooklyn, there is

         12  some activity, I will vote yes on this.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. TURNER:  Council Member Golden.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  May I be

         15  excused to explain my vote?  I vote aye, Mr.

         16  Chairman, and I vote, what I hear here at this

         17  Committee meeting that there is not enough of this,

         18  and there is not enough of it in Brooklyn, and I

         19  think we have to start to look to get more of this

         20  in Brooklyn.  Brooklyn has been the stepchild for

         21  many, many years and we would like to see more

         22  economic development, and especially in the

         23  surrounding areas around the water and around Sunset

         24  Park, and in Red Hook, and -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And
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          2  Flatbush.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  And in

          4  Flatbush, but around those areas that have been

          5  burdened for many, many years and have been an

          6  eyesore for our communities where there should be a

          7  thriving economy and there is none.  I look forward

          8  to seeing more of these projects instituted in

          9  Manhattan, in Brooklyn, in Staten Island, all of the

         10  boroughs, and again, I will vote aye, and thank you

         11  for allowing me to be part of this.  Thank you.

         12                 MR. TURNER:  Council Member Fisher.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  If I can be

         14  temporarily excused to explain my vote?  I vote aye

         15  on this legislation.  I want to echo comments of the

         16  other members from Brooklyn, starting with Council

         17  Member DiBrienza, who I think has articulately made

         18  the case why more job- based incentive programs are

         19  required and as well as Council Member Rodriguez, he

         20  and I share industrial areas, Council Member Clarke,

         21  I'm talking about the overall equity for the

         22  borough, and also, Council Member Golden, because

         23  I'm not sure that these incentives are steep enough.

         24                 The fact of the matter is, is that it

         25  still cost more to build a new project in Brooklyn
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          2  than it cost to build the same project in New

          3  Jersey.  And all you have to do is go to the top of

          4  the World Trade Center and look north and you will

          5  see how development is spilling out all over the

          6  Jersey shore.  Although, I wouldn't necessarily want

          7  Newport in Greenpoint, the fact of the matter is, is

          8  that there are tremendous opportunities along the

          9  water front that are going untaken.

         10                 Brooklyn is at a real disadvantage

         11  today, vis- a- vis, Lower Manhattan, we had a

         12  problem in Lower Manhattan, we have solved it, but

         13  by the same token we still don't seem to be able to

         14  restart the engine that we had started in the

         15  eighties we MetroTech and the hotel.

         16                 So I would ask you, Mr. Chairman, if

         17  you would have your staff work with some of us to

         18  see if we can't develop a 21st Century incentive

         19  program to encourage the kind of speculative, and I

         20  want to remind my colleagues of this, is what we're

         21  asking owners to do is to invest in their buildings

         22  on a speculative basis rather than making those same

         23  investment elsewhere.  So if we could get some

         24  technical assistance, perhaps we could craft

         25  something more appropriate for the millennium.
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          2                 I vote aye.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  We will, I

          4  will direct the staff to do just that.

          5                 MR. TURNER:  Chairman O'Donovan.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  By a vote of 5

          8  in the affirmative, 2 in the negative, no

          9  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Please sign the

         10  reports.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

         12  colleagues.  Now ladies and gentleman, - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Mr.

         14  Chairman, just for a second?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Have you

         17  noticed how many people, how many members are from

         18  Brooklyn on this Committee, five members?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I know.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Not every

         21  Committee is this fortunate, Ronnie.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I was

         23  thinking about that myself, especially when it is

         24  voting time.

         25                 Ladies and gentlemen, we will take
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          2  two minutes so we can talk briefly to the Legal

          3  Counsel here regarding this outcoming public market

          4  discussion, two minutes recess, two minutes.

          5                 All right ladies and gentlemen, now

          6  we're going to take up the issue of Intro. No. 459-

          7  A, Public Market's amendments.

          8                 Today we will be conducting a second

          9  hearing on Proposed Intro. No. 459- A, co- sponsored

         10  by myself and Council Members DiBrienza and Fisher,

         11  as well as Council Members Carrion, Eisland, Leffler

         12  and Wooten.  This bill seeks amendment to Local Law

         13  28 of 1997, the Public Market's Law.  Those persons

         14  wishing to provide testimony please get an

         15  appearance card with the Sergeant At- Arms in the

         16  back.

         17                 Local Law 28 passed by the Council in

         18  1997 serves as a comprehensive measure that expanded

         19  the City's ability to regulate the operation of

         20  public wholesale markets.  These markets included

         21  the Hunts Point Food Distribution Center and the

         22  Bronx Terminal Market in the Bronx, the Brooklyn

         23  Terminal Market, and the Brooklyn Wholesale Meat

         24  Market in Brooklyn, and the Gains Root Meat Market

         25  in Manhattan.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 Last October 15th, this Committee

          3  held an oversight hearing to evaluate the

          4  effectiveness of Local Law 28, to review the

          5  Department's annual report on the public wholesale

          6  markets and to investigate concerns raised by unions

          7  and market businesses about the operation and

          8  management of the public markets by the Department

          9  of Business Services.  The Committee received

         10  testimony from the Department, the United Commercial

         11  and Food Workers Unions and the Central Labor

         12  Council regarding their experience with the

         13  implementation of Local Law 28.

         14                 As a result of that hearing, I, along

         15  with Council Members DiBrienza and Fisher,

         16  introduced a bill, Intro. No. 459 to address several

         17  of those issues raised.  Our first hearing on this

         18  bill was on October 29th, 1998, and we heard from

         19  the Department and the United Commercial and Food

         20  Workers Unions.  Subsequent to that hearing and

         21  prior to today's Committee hearing, members of the

         22  Council's staff have been in negotiations with the

         23  Administration to address those concerns raised with

         24  our previous hearing.

         25                 Proposed Intro. No. 459- A modifies
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          2  Local Law 28, including those pertaining to ability

          3  of Labor Unions, organizations, to lawfully and

          4  peacefully picket a market property, to exempt

          5  employees from liability for violations of the

          6  market's law while in the scope of their employment

          7  where the violation was committed by their

          8  employers, changing the registration procedures and

          9  registration time period for Labor Unions, labor

         10  organizations, wholesale businesses, market

         11  businesses and wholesale trade associations, and

         12  creating a more equitable arbitration procedure for

         13  disqualification of union officers, and establishing

         14  a seizure and forfeit procedure for employees'

         15  vehicles, property, and other equipment when used in

         16  violation of the market's law or rules.

         17                 We, as the Council, must work to

         18  ensure that any changes to Local Law 28 improves it

         19  and makes the law work better for everyone concerned

         20  with operation and growth of New York City's public

         21  markets while ensuring that criminal elements are

         22  driven from the markets and kept out.

         23                 At this time I would like to

         24  recognize any member of the Committee who would like

         25  to comment on the record, and then I will call Legal
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          2  Counsel to briefly go over the changes that we

          3  believe should be in the new amended bill.  Any

          4  member of the Committee would like to make a

          5  comment?  Council Member DiBrienza.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman. I just want to be clear, if I'm

          8  following your opening statement, that at the public

          9  hearing on, our Committee hearing I should say back

         10  in October, that the witness was the head of the,

         11  what was the title of the witness from

         12  Administration, Mr. Moss, was it?

         13                 MR. TURNER:  He was First Deputy

         14  Commissioner of the Department of Investigation, and

         15  he was also cross designated as, I believe, the

         16  Deputy Commissioner in the Department of Business

         17  Services.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Now he was

         19  in charge of the markets, the bill, and the

         20  enforcement, as I recall, and he engaged in

         21  meaningful discussion, and quite frankly, very frank

         22  discussion at that table, suggesting that among the

         23  array of the five or six amendments that were

         24  proposed there was merit in some, there were

         25  variations on some, for example, the arbitration
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          2  procedure might have been, there may have been other

          3  methods then the one chosen, the time for

          4  registration might have been, you know, subject to

          5  increase, not necessarily the people who registered.

          6    In other words, I'm recalling, I'm sure we could

          7  get his transcript for the exact record, but it was

          8  pretty clear that, my recollection is he indicated

          9  that, in fact, these issues could be looked at and

         10  negotiated further.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

         12  you're exactly correct, that is exactly what he had

         13  said.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  And then,

         15  that is the first point I want to be clear.  The

         16  second point is that it is my understanding that the

         17  language proposed back in October is no longer the

         18  language that appears in the amended version today,

         19  and that is not by happenstance, that is as a result

         20  of ongoing discussions and negotiations between the

         21  Council staff and the Administration staff.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  That is

         23  correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  And so it

         25  amazes me that in the last 48 hours as we get to
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          2  this hearing, designed to air this new language that

          3  is moving us in the direction of balance, and

          4  fairness, in trying to amend and strengthen the law,

          5  that the Administration is suddenly 100 percent

          6  against this exercise and disavows, you know, like

          7  the movie, disavows any knowledge of being ever

          8  involved.

          9                 And let me be clear about the last

         10  point, my understanding is this new package of

         11  amendments, which Counsel will speak to in a minute,

         12  includes one or two brand new ideas, not talked

         13  about in October that were initiated and submitted

         14  to us by the Administration.  So it seems kind of

         15  foolish to not have a meaningful discussion and

         16  debate today and at the next meeting on these five,

         17  or six, or now seven amendments, designed to find

         18  balance and improve the law.

         19                 When you participated in the

         20  negotiations starting with the Deputy Commissioner

         21  of DOI and the other Administration members, until

         22  48 hours ago, and somehow cast an aspersion on the

         23  Council for seeking to always look back at a law we

         24  passed, in fact, at the time we said we would look

         25  at it once it was up and running.  So I just want
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          2  that record to be clear, and whether or not any or

          3  all these amendments ultimately pass, and I clearly

          4  hope they do.

          5                 I will just use one example, under

          6  the current law five arbitrators selected by the

          7  Administration from a list wholly and solely they

          8  pick the names they want.  My understanding of the

          9  possible change is, you take that same list of

         10  certified arbitrators and you pick out, and they're

         11  generated at random, five come off the list at

         12  random, and then eventually one is picked. And

         13  perhaps my colleague, Council Member Fisher, could

         14  speak to it even better, I know you are very

         15  familiar with that aspect of the law, but the point

         16  is, it's not a dramatic change.

         17                 So to think as we begin today's

         18  process that the world as we know it will end,

         19  because the Administration and the Council sort to

         20  find some additional balance and improve a law,

         21  except for the last 48 hours when that became their

         22  position, seems absurd.

         23                 So that is what I want on the record,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, Council
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          2  member. Obviously, you know, an approximate year has

          3  gone past, we were, not under the impression, but we

          4  have emphatically said that given one year we would

          5  look at this, we would give it a try, and if need be

          6  amended, it would be amended.  That was the hour,

          7  determination, it was agreed to, and the

          8  Administration to look at it, to look at the

          9  amendments, here we are with the amendments, and we

         10  will discuss.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Council

         13  Member Golden.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  I also would

         15  like on the record that I believe when you went

         16  through to negotiation and into an agreement, an

         17  agreement is agreed to, and here there has been no

         18  agreement made by the City Administration with the

         19  amendments that are placed forward here.  So what

         20  we're actually doing, is, we're putting amendments

         21  forward without any negotiation in agreement, and I

         22  think that is wrong, and that should be placed on

         23  the record as well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Well, you're

         25  absolutely right, it will be placed on the record.
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          2  However, we're here today, I see nobody with the

          3  Administration sitting in front of us to discuss

          4  this.  But it's my understanding, and I know for a

          5  fact, we all do, that our staff has been working and

          6  talking with the Mayor's staff, and I believe we

          7  will continue to do that.

          8                 Now, Legal Counsel, would you briefly

          9  discuss our changes, and then we will hear from our

         10  witnesses?

         11                 MR. TURNER:  Okay, what I will do, is

         12  attempt to briefly describe each of the sections of

         13  the bill which are contained in the briefing paper

         14  that should be available to the members.

         15                 Section 1 of the bill would amend the

         16  definition of public wholesale markets, contained in

         17  Subdivision H of Section 22 251, to include any

         18  building structure or other placed owned, and adding

         19  or under lease by the City or located on property

         20  owned or added or under lease by the City.  This

         21  Section would also define the term place of business

         22  of a wholesale business or a market business to mean

         23  any building, structure, stall or other area, or any

         24  part thereof, within a public wholesale market that

         25  is leased, operated, managed, or used exclusively by
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          2  a wholesale business or market business.  The

          3  purpose of this provision is to clarify:

          4                 1.  That the City- owned market

          5  remains public property even if leased by the City

          6  to a non- governmental entity; and,

          7                 2.  That lawful picketing or other

          8  labor activity may take place at the area within the

          9  public wholesale market where the wholesale business

         10  or market business actually conducts their business,

         11  and may not be limited to the area outside the

         12  market.

         13                 Section 2 of the bill would amend

         14  Subdivision A of Section 22- 253 of the Code by

         15  renumbering the first paragraph and adding a new

         16  paragraph that would require a wholesale or market

         17  business to register every five years and to report

         18  any material changes in registration to the

         19  Commissioner of the Department of Business Services

         20  within 30 days thereof.

         21                 Currently, under the Code and the

         22  Rule require a wholesale businesses and market

         23  businesses to register every three years, and that

         24  they have to report material changes within 10 days

         25  of any particular change.  The purpose of this
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          2  section is to make reporting requirements uniformed

          3  for all parties who are required to register

          4  pursuant to this Chapter.

          5                 And also, during the course of the

          6  testimony of Mr. Moss at our October 15th, I think

          7  it's October 29th here, excuse me, 1998, he had

          8  agreed to provisions with respect to extending to 30

          9  days the reporting of any material change in the

         10  registration.

         11                 Section 3 of the bill would amend

         12  Section 22- 255 of the Code to specify that a

         13  representative of a labor union or organization

         14  engaged in lawful exercise of activities authorized

         15  by the National Labor Relations Act, including

         16  lawfully picketing a place of business of a

         17  wholesale business or market business within the

         18  public, per Section 2.  But, however, the Labor

         19  Union or Labor Union representative shall not impede

         20  any reasonable measure undertaken by a police

         21  officer or authorized employee of the Department

         22  intended to control vehicle or pedestrian traffic

         23  within such public wholesale markets, or upon any

         24  street, avenue, parkway, plaza, square, or other

         25  public place designated as a public market. The
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          2  intention of this amendment is not to allow anyone

          3  to impede traffic within the public market, and was

          4  added to address a specific concern raised by the

          5  Administration.

          6                 Currently, this Section of the Code

          7  allows the Commissioner or her designee, and this

          8  case with respect to Hunts Point Market, the Hunts

          9  Point Co- op, to deny a visitor pass or entry into a

         10  market to any person whose presence may constitute a

         11  threat to orderly operation of the market or if they

         12  fail to provide information required by the

         13  Commissioner.  Although, under the current

         14  provisions, a visitor pass cannot be denied to a

         15  representative of a Labor Union or organization

         16  engaged in lawful exercise activities under the

         17  National Labor Relations Act within the public

         18  market.

         19                 The Committee was previously

         20  presented with testimony that the current provisions

         21  were not sufficient to protect labor union

         22  representatives from exercising their rights under

         23  the law.  An example was cited and confirmed by the

         24  Department in their testimony on October 29th, in

         25  which workers seeking to place a picket within the
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          2  public market at Hunts Point were told by the

          3  Department designee at the market that they would be

          4  considered trespasses and subject to arrest that

          5  they continue with these activities on market

          6  property.  While it is the Committee's belief that

          7  the picketing within public wholesale market

          8  property is expressly allowed under the current

          9  provisions of Local Law 28, this provision seeks to

         10  clarify the right of representatives of labor unions

         11  and organizations to picket at the place of business

         12  within the public wholesale market.  The new

         13  provision specifically prohibits anyone from

         14  impeding vehicle or pedestrian traffic within the

         15  market, and is intended to make clear that such

         16  interference remains impermissible.  This was added

         17  to address, again, the concerns raised by the

         18  Administration in negotiation on this matter.

         19                 Section 4 of the bill would amend

         20  Section 22- 256 of the Code, 256 of the

         21  administrative of the Code that requires currently

         22  that the registration be for a three- year period,

         23  because of other sections of the bill, we extend

         24  that period to a five- year period.

         25                 Section 5 of the bill would amend
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          2  Section 22- 257 of the Code by adding a new

          3  paragraph that would state that an employee of a

          4  wholesale business or market business when acting

          5  within the scope of his or her employment may not be

          6  liable for violation of Local Law 28 or any rules

          7  promulgated pursuant thereto when the violation was

          8  committed by the employer or by a principal officer

          9  or agent of the employer.

         10                 The Committee was presented with

         11  testimony regarding market employees who are fined

         12  while performing duties within the scope of their

         13  employment and under direct orders  of their

         14  wholesale or market business employer.  One example

         15  was where an employee was fined $500 for his

         16  employer's failure to have insurance on a fort that

         17  he was operating.  The second example was that of an

         18  employee who was fined $5,000 for placing a fish

         19  palette on the sidewalk outside of the employers

         20  building pursuant to an order of that employer.

         21                 This provision seeks to clarify that

         22  a market employee shall not be liable for failure by

         23  his or her wholesale or market employer to comply

         24  with Local Law 28 or the rules promulgated.

         25                 Section 6 of the bill would amend
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          2  Subdivision A of Section 22- 264 by adding a new

          3  paragraph that would require labor unions and

          4  organizations to register every five years, and to

          5  report any material changes in the registration

          6  within 30 days thereof.

          7                 Section 7 of the bill seeks to amend

          8  Subdivisions B and C of Section 22- 264 to allow

          9  that any, again, any reports by the labor union in

         10  change in information required will be reported

         11  within 30 days, and also, to institute a new

         12  arbitration process where it would authorize the

         13  random selection of five arbitrators from a list

         14  approved by the Office of Collective Bargaining.

         15  Then after a 14- day period both the Administration

         16  and the suspended person would have an opportunity

         17  to rank the arbitrators, and if they were able to

         18  agree to an arbitrator, that arbitrator would be

         19  selected.  If they are not able to agree on an

         20  arbitrator based on the ranking, then they would

         21  have an opportunity to strike arbitrators until they

         22  came to an arbitrator who is remaining.

         23                 Section 8 of the bill would amend

         24  Subdivision A of Section 22- 265 of the Code to

         25  require that a wholesale trade association to
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          2  register every five years and to report any change,

          3  material change and information within 30 days of,

          4  this would make it consistent.

          5                 Section 9 of the bill would amend

          6  Subdivision B of Section 22- 265 that would also

          7  require the wholesale trade association to report

          8  material changes within 35 days of the change.

          9                 Section 10 of the bill would add a

         10  new Section, 22 262.1 that would provide for the

         11  seizure and forfeiture of vehicle or other property

         12  or equipment, owned or rented or leased by an

         13  employer who is not properly registered and failed

         14  to report that certain information.

         15                 This concept for this provision was

         16  presented to the Council by the Administration

         17  during the course of the negotiations on this bill

         18  and was added in response to their suggestion.

         19                 Section 11 of the bill amends

         20  Subdivision D of Section 22- 216 that would require

         21  a person registering as a wholesaler or seafood

         22  deliver at Fulton Fish Market to provide information

         23  to the Commissioner regarding their financial

         24  responsibility to conduct the business in that

         25  market.  Once, again, this concept was presented to
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          2  the Council by the Administration during the course

          3  of negotiations and was added into response based on

          4  their suggestion.

          5                 Section 12, just says that this would

          6  take effect immediately.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Mr.

          9  Chairman?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes,

         11  Councilman.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  I just

         13  have one suggestion for our Counsel, and I want to

         14  commend all of the legal staff for this very direct

         15  and clear briefing paper indicating not only the

         16  history of the negotiations, the evolution of the

         17  changes, but even the new changes that were handed

         18  to us by this Administration.

         19                 My suggestion between now and the

         20  next meeting is that we create a kind of flow chart

         21  that says, here is the provisions, very short

         22  column, here are the provisions that were in the

         23  original bill, might even say, here were some of the

         24  originally suggested changes, here are the

         25  negotiated changes.  In other words, showing the
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          2  incremental evolution of these changes, because,

          3  quite frankly, a fair reading of this, these

          4  amendments show they're very much in the nature of

          5  incremental changes trying to find that balance that

          6  is necessary to maintain strong, effective, safe

          7  public markets, free of corruption, - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  You want to

          9  build your case.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA: - -

         11  empower employees in a fair way.

         12                 So I just think it is very important,

         13  believe me, I don't have a problem being on the

         14  opposite side to this Administration on this or on

         15  any other issue.  But in this case the leadership of

         16  the Council and the Administration were negotiating

         17  incremental changes until 48 hours ago, so it just

         18  surprises me, that is why I keep repeating that

         19  point, it's very, very, sort of shocking.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:   We will do

         21  that, we will have the charts ready at the next

         22  hearing.  Yes, Councilwoman Clarke, and then I'm

         23  going to bring up the witnesses.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  I just want

         25  to refer to the first hearing that we had and how
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          2  difficult it was to kind of just informing them of

          3  the role of employees versus the role of the

          4  employer as it came to sanctions within the market

          5  who was responsible, and to the extent that we

          6  recognized that the original law was put into place

          7  to protect the public from corruption, from the mob,

          8  and whatever, it seems to me, that in informing out

          9  this bill and delineating, that we're somehow still

         10  protecting the integrity of the original intent of

         11  the law, while making sure that employees and

         12  employers who have to be in the workplace are also

         13  given the proper access, depending on and veering in

         14  mind all of the safeguards that have been put in

         15  place both by the DOI, who themselves oversee what

         16  happens in the market and issues of identification

         17  for persons going into the market.  So I think that

         18  any movement in protecting employers and employees,

         19  I think is the right thing to do, and I think that

         20  this bill is addressing that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         22  Our first witness, to call two up, would be Richard

         23  Lipsky, UFCW, and William H. Dano, UFCW.  Gentlemen.

         24                 MR. DANO:  Good afternoon.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Good
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          2  afternoon.

          3                 MR. DANO:  My name is Bill Dano, and

          4  I am the International Vice- President of region one

          5  of the United Food Commercial Workers International

          6  Union.  I am here today to voice support for Intro.

          7  459- A, a bill that will amend Local Law 28.  It is

          8  our strong belief that these proposed amendments

          9  will help to make market laws fairer to the workers

         10  and the employees who work in these markets, and

         11  who, in reality, play a vital role in their economic

         12  success.

         13                 At the same time, however, we also

         14  believe that the current changes being contemplated

         15  do not upset the basic underlying goals of the

         16  original legislation.  The City will maintain the

         17  ability to properly monitor the activities in the

         18  market, and thus ensure that this vital economic

         19  engine remains free of crime and corruption.

         20                 If I may, I would like to speak to

         21  specific amendments being proposed.

         22                 Arbitration provision, under the

         23  current law if the union official is singled out by

         24  the Commissioner of Business Services as a person

         25  who lacks honesty, integrity, and good character, an
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          2  arbitration proceeding is mandated.  The process,

          3  however, lacks fundamental fairness because the

          4  Commission is able to choose five arbitrators from

          5  the Office of Collective Bargaining.  The accused is

          6  then permitted, and only then permitted, to pick one

          7  of the five arbitrators for the hearing on the

          8  charges.  Clearly, this selection process can lead

          9  to abuse.

         10                 Under the proposed changes, however,

         11  a random selection process is substituted for the

         12  current procedure.  This will ensure that the

         13  accused gets a fair hearing and the basic American

         14  right of due process, which is the UFCW's only

         15  concern.

         16                 Secondly, picketing at the markets,

         17  when the original law was passed, we were concerned

         18  that a quasi in the legislation that addressed

         19  disruption of the orderly operation of the market,

         20  would have a potentially negative impact on the

         21  legitimate activities of organized labor.  We were

         22  particularly concerned about the restriction on

         23  picketing individual wholesalers within the

         24  marketplace.  Our concerns were shared by many of

         25  this Committee and are reflected in the proposed
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          2  amendments that specifically permit peaceful and

          3  lawful picketing.  Now our concerns in this regard

          4  are not purely hypothetical.

          5                 On November 19th, 1998, we had an

          6  incident involving a wholesaler in Hunts Point

          7  Market.  Jose Lopez, a business agent for Local 342-

          8  50, one of our UFCW's local unions, was forcefully

          9  removed from the marketplace while simply attempting

         10  to perform his legitimate role of union

         11  representative.  It seems that the Hunts Point

         12  Market properly designated a public market is

         13  policed by a security force that is hired and

         14  behooving to the businesses in that market.

         15                 Mr. Chairman, this amendment is vital

         16  to the protection of the rights of all workers.  The

         17  Mayor proposed the original legislation because he

         18  wanted greater direct oversight over public markets.

         19    So for this policy function the market became

         20  public, for basic rights of workers however, the

         21  area within the public market is transformed into

         22  private property.  It seems to us that you can't

         23  have it both ways in this regard, from a practical

         24  standpoint preventing us from directly picketing a

         25  business in the market will force our picket lines
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          2  to the outside of the gates, potentially, and a

          3  great potential, this would disrupt the entire

          4  marketplace and penalize businesses that have no

          5  relationship with an ongoing dispute, nothing could

          6  do more to disrupt the orderly operation of the

          7  marketplace on a day- to- day basis, nothing.

          8                 Third, officers definitions in the

          9  registration, these proposed changes are important

         10  because they reduce the financial burden on the

         11  impacted local unions.  Registration should not be

         12  used to penalize unions in the pocketbooks, a longer

         13  registration period will also not have any negative

         14  impact on the status of officers, as they must be

         15  updated in a timely fashion.

         16                 Fourth, civil penalties, under the

         17  current law it is stated that the employer is

         18  responsible for the actions of his or her employees.

         19    At the time the law is silent on responsibilities

         20  of the employees, this is led to workers being fined

         21  ridiculously high amounts of money for simply

         22  following the orders of his boss, his employer.  It

         23  makes no sense, and it certainly not fair for

         24  workers to be held responsible for their

         25  supervisor's actions or directives.  This amendment
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          2  simply puts responsibility back where it belongs.

          3                 Intro. 459- A is a welcomed

          4  improvement to Local Law 28, it deserves the basic

          5  premise, it preserves the basic premise of the

          6  original law while eliminating some arbitrary and

          7  unfair provisions.  When this law was passed,

          8  Speaker Vallone and his Committee promised to

          9  revisit it if and when it could be demonstrated that

         10  certain features were unfair to workers.  It is to

         11  the credit of the Speaker and all of you on this

         12  Committee that we are today to fulfill this promise.

         13    All of our members in this City and throughout the

         14  region, thank you, for your endeavors and for your

         15  efforts today.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         18  Mr. Lipsky.

         19                 MR. LIPSKY:  No, I have nothing more

         20  to add, I will be here to answer any questions that

         21  you might have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Any

         23  questions?  Yes, Council Member Fisher.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Thank you for

         25  your testimony.  I felt, particularly, the point

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  that you made about public for one purpose, private

          3  for another purpose was well taken, and, in fact,

          4  the situation that you described of potentially

          5  disrupting the operations in the market that people

          6  can't picket inside the gates, I think you actually

          7  underestimated the potential for disruption to the

          8  market, and that was one of the issues that I went

          9  into with Commissioner Moss, when he was with us

         10  before.  So I thought your point was well taken.

         11                 Since I think this is your first

         12  appearance at the, at least at this Committee, and

         13  Mr. Perrone had represented your union in the

         14  negotiations previously, I was wondering if you

         15  could just tell us a little bit about who you are

         16  and how long you have been in this position, and

         17  what is going on with the union? Because one of the

         18  reasons that, some of the locals associated with

         19  your international were identified by the Mayor as

         20  being problematic, and some efforts have been made

         21  to clean that up.  Mr. Perrone's temporary post, I

         22  guess, in New York was part of that initiative to

         23  make sure that the unions own house was in order,

         24  and I just want to get a little bit of elaboration

         25  as to what has happened since then.
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          2                 MR. DANO:  The International Union as

          3  a whole and throughout its history has endeavored,

          4  and not only on sporadic, you know, occasion where

          5  required, but it's endeavored on a daily basis to

          6  maintain a clean and orderly house.  Certainly,

          7  organized labor is, has been tarnished by activities

          8  of whatever organizations, rather unions may have

          9  been, and it seems that there is a lot of play, if

         10  you will, a lot of publicity placed on organizations

         11  that have a flaw or a fault.

         12                 Our organization, as I started to

         13  say, endeavors to keep its local unions, its

         14  regional offices, its international office, forgive

         15  me, as clean as possible, as physically possible.

         16  You know, certainly, I don't care what industry,

         17  what organization, what business, whether its

         18  politics, public office, whether its the private

         19  sector, there is going to be a bad apple in a bunch.

         20  Our organization strives to find the bad apple

         21  before it rots and destroys the barrel.

         22                 Perrone was an overseer of this

         23  region for several years, he did a marvelous job in

         24  assisting the local unions to maintain credibility

         25  and honesty and integrity in its communities, in its
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          2  daily operations.

          3                 I commit to you, I promise, as I have

          4  to the members in other regions that I have been a

          5  Director and Vice- President in, that that will also

          6  be my endeavor, that will also be my promise, what I

          7  strive for.  This organization is a good

          8  organization just as many, many other unions in this

          9  City, this great City, this great State, are good

         10  labor organizations.

         11                 You know, what each one of them do to

         12  monitor themselves, I don't know, but we're not

         13  looking here to gut any regulation that would

         14  facilitate the growth of organized crime, for God

         15  sakes.  We're looking to do whatever we can to

         16  control any access of organized crime into any of

         17  our organizations, whether they be local or

         18  national.

         19                 I have been with the International

         20  Union for 27 years, I have held many positions

         21  within the International.  I started out as a basic

         22  representative servicing membership in Boston,

         23  Massachusetts.  Our International has eight regions

         24  in the United States, I have been assigned to six of

         25  them.  I have served office, I have held office in
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          2  six of the regions across the United States.  I have

          3  seen many faces and I have seen many intricate parts

          4  of our organization.  I have seen us cleanse parts

          5  that needed to be cleansed, and I have seen us

          6  reward parts that strive to be the best they could

          7  possibly, physically be.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay.

          9                 MR. DANO:  I don't know if that

         10  answers the question, but - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I think it

         12  does.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Thank you,

         14  very much.

         15                 MR. LIPSKY:  I would just add,

         16  Councilman, that the International has been vigilant

         17  even prior to law enforcement activities to ensure

         18  that the behavior of locals is exemplary, they have

         19  trustee locals on number of occasions in this

         20  region, precisely for that purpose, so we don't,

         21  certainly, as a union we want to preserve, any kind

         22  of unlawful or corruption activity, and we want to

         23  make it very clear though, that we need to make a

         24  distinction between the pursuit of corruption and

         25  the disruption of basic rights of organized labor,
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          2  and sometimes in this particular legislation and the

          3  history of this legislation that has been confused.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Mr. Chairman,

          5  if I can, just one very brief comment?  In the

          6  Mayor's Memorandum in Opposition, they make

          7  reference to the fact that the arbitration provision

          8  has never been invoked, and I must say that I'm

          9  actually surprised that to the best of my knowledge,

         10  and I think I have followed this as closely as

         11  anybody, the Administration has yet to bring

         12  Administrative charges against the Officer of any

         13  union, even those that might have had reason to be

         14  concerned about the legislation when it was first

         15  proposed.

         16                 So, I wonder, Mr. Lipsky, am I

         17  correct in that understanding that in the two years

         18  or so since we first adopted this provision, no

         19  charges have been brought against any union official

         20  by the Administration at any of the markets.

         21                 MR. LIPSKY:  Yes, that is correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Councilwoman

         25  Clarke.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you

          3  very much.  Just wanted to see if either of you

          4  could give a clarification of the whole issue of the

          5  arbitrators how they are to be picked, what the

          6  difference is in random or the selection of five,

          7  why are you insisting on, you know, there is going

          8  to be five anyway, what is your thought why the five

          9  picked in another manner may not be just?

         10                 MR. DANO:  In a random method it

         11  means a random process, I believe, it would preclude

         12  or it would limit any selection of an arbiter who

         13  may seem to be favorable to a particular side,

         14  position, organization or Administration.  A random

         15  selection is, perhaps, the only selection that is

         16  fair and honest.  It's a random selection of our

         17  arbiters, are utilized in the public and private

         18  sectors outside the confines or the limits of your

         19  City law.  It works effectively, it works

         20  efficiently, and it's fair to both the employers in

         21  private sector and the employees or the members of

         22  the organizations, Ma'am.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Papers,

         24  whether it's my favorite or not, talks about the

         25  comfort and aid that the Council would be providing
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          2  to organized crime.  Can you describe for us what is

          3  your, the unions and your position on what efforts

          4  you make to make sure that now that we have done the

          5  original law that we continue to beat away at

          6  keeping out organized crime, are there any special

          7  efforts of your own vigilance that you know of?

          8                 MR. DANO:  Ma'am, within our

          9  structure, within our organization, the structure,

         10  the housing of our organization there is built in

         11  checks and balances.  The checks and balances come

         12  from the language of its constitution, the document

         13  or the instrument that governs the organization.

         14  Local union, or for that matter, any chartered body

         15  of the International Union is governed by the do's

         16  and don't's of the constitution, the law, the

         17  International Union's law.  There are safeguards

         18  built into that constitution that protect membership

         19  or unions or bodies from the organized crime, the

         20  take over of organized crime or the questionable

         21  figures.

         22                 I think the process in which the

         23  membership selects its officers and the process in

         24  which the local unions officers bring forth, bring

         25  the protocols and the procedures in the agendas of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            81

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  local union to the membership, into their Executive

          3  Boards, and are made to ratify, explain and ratify

          4  all of those things, they're safeguards.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  My final

          6  question is going to be about the employees

          7  themselves who work.   Over recent years we have

          8  read, we have seen a lot of bad publicity about

          9  labor union, who in many ways the persons that they

         10  protect they end up exploiting in many ways, and

         11  people feel, and I think for all intents and

         12  purposes, it has created a whole anti- labor union

         13  feeling in many places.  I am a daughter of a labor

         14  organizer for sugar cane in a little island called

         15  Jamaica, so I know what the struggle of the man at

         16  the bottom is to gain recognition, to get proper

         17  benefits so you don't work 18 hours a day, you know,

         18  that kind of stuff.  I would like to find out from

         19  you what protections, what benefits, and ways in

         20  which the employees in these markets feel that they

         21  were served by the union, because when I go on the

         22  mat actually, I go on the mat for the working person

         23  who pay rent in my district, who educate their

         24  children in my district, and I know that I am

         25  helping to build the base of both integrity and
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          2  dignity of workers?

          3                 MR. DANO:  Ma'am, the members of the

          4  UFCW Local Unions, they're not prodded, they're not

          5  herded down here, they came down here because they

          6  have the feel, they have the sense of importance of

          7  what the local union is doing and what it is trying

          8  to accomplish here at this simple hearing today.

          9  These are the members of the UFCW, these are the

         10  spirit of the organization, these are the people

         11  that drive the organization, Ma'am.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

         13  and thank you, gentlemen.  And finally, we have two

         14  other individuals to testify, and that is, Roland

         15  Evans from Local 174, and Laura Schubert from Local

         16  174.

         17                 MR. LIPSKY:  Mr. Chairman?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes, Mr.

         19  Lipsky.

         20                 MR. LIPSKY:  I'm going to stay up

         21  with the local members just to answer some

         22  questions, if you need me.  And just let me add,

         23  before the two representatives of Local 174 testify,

         24  the reason we asked them to testify, certainly, they

         25  are not professional witnesses of any kind, but we
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          2  are concerned with the kind of spin, if you will,

          3  that this bill is, that these amendments are being

          4  given.  Quite frankly, we don't see the connection

          5  between what these amendments are being

          6  characterized as and what the amendments are

          7  actually saying.  There is no nexus between the talk

          8  of organized crime and the language of these bills,

          9  the language of this amendment.  These amendments

         10  are designed to protect workers and to be fair, and

         11  that is the only thing that we're concerned about,

         12  we're not concerned with gutting the bill, we're

         13  concerned that everyone gets due process, and when

         14  there is a dispute they have a right to picket.

         15                 So that being said, I would like the

         16  local members introduce themselves and tell you a

         17  little bit who they are.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Mr.

         19  Lipsky, and apparently until 48 hours ago that is

         20  what the leadership of both the Council and the

         21  Administration thought, so we share a lot of your

         22  frustration with the turn of event.

         23                 MS. SCHUBERT:  Good afternoon, ladies

         24  and gentlemen. My name is Laura Schubert, and I work

         25  in the 14th Street Market, and I bring the voice of
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          2  my fellow workers for the market.  And the voice is

          3  the concern of this amendment Local Law 28.

          4                 Our concern is the protection of the

          5  right of workers, and they have the fair hearing in

          6  times that we need, and especially the concern of

          7  the worker who we penalized monetary or fire from

          8  the work, and just to follow, try to follow the

          9  employers order.  We are very concerned about that,

         10  our fellow worker caught between two force, the one

         11  from the employer and another from the rules and the

         12  amendments on the managing of the Market.  And

         13  another one is the right to be picketing, we,

         14  sometime we get dispute with employer, and we would

         15  like to have the right to be picketing on the

         16  business where we are disputing.

         17                 This is our concern in the market,

         18  and I hope and thank you, to the Committee, and to

         19  oversee the concern for my fellow workers in the

         20  14th Street Market in Manhattan.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         23  Sir.

         24                 MR. EVANS:  My name is Roland Evans.

         25  I work at the Hunts Point Market, and my concern is
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          2  that if there is a problem within the Market and the

          3  union representatives come out to help us, we want

          4  to know that they can do their jobs protecting us,

          5  the workers, the way they should without being

          6  thrown out of the Market by the private security

          7  that works in the market, for the market.

          8                 Also, we would like to know that we

          9  can always depend on our union representative to

         10  support us, the workers, and to be there when we

         11  need them and the process of doing our job.

         12                 We would also like to know that when

         13  there is a problem that it can be solved without a

         14  whole lot of trouble between the employees and their

         15  union.

         16                 Also at the time of picketing, we

         17  need to picket directly in front of the place where

         18  the problem is, not outside the Market Square, the

         19  people coming in don't know what the problem is or

         20  who it is with.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, ladies

         23  and gentlemen, for the record, the Committee has

         24  received a Memo of Opposition from the Mayor's

         25  Office, and it will be made part of the record.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  May I just

          3  say something?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I read the

          6  Memo of Opposition and I have listened to the

          7  testimony of the representatives of the union and

          8  the workers and Mr. Lipsky, and I am, frankly, very

          9  tired of the distortions on this whole issue, and I

         10  think it reflects a paranoia that I think all of you

         11  have seen by even by trying to come into this

         12  hearing, where you can't come into City Hall until

         13  they have decided it is time to come in here.  When

         14  I came into City Hall today, people were standing

         15  outside of the City Hall lot, and we are

         16  increasingly faced with a force on the other side of

         17  City Hall that is, obviously, interested only in

         18  having their own way and following their own

         19  interest.  This is an US Attorney who went after

         20  some of unions and some organized crime, but this is

         21  now a City government that is operating economic

         22  development projects, and markets, and things like

         23  that, and this is not the proper place for this

         24  paranoid attitude.  We have been through years of

         25  the discussions and they have always been phrased in
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          2  the most unfortunate way, and I think that the fact

          3  that the Administration has not come to this meeting

          4  today, no less stopped any kind of negotiating, that

          5  it is time for us to move ahead, and I don't really

          6  care about negotiating with them anymore.  And if

          7  the Speaker wants to support this, we have the votes

          8  to override a veto, and we should pass this

          9  legislation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Council

         11  Member Golden.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I will allow

         15  this exercise, I think its healthy, but now I listen

         16  from the other side.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  I heartened

         18  to see the employees and the labor unions out here

         19  in force, they come today to make their statement to

         20  the Committee and to the City Council. But I do

         21  believe we're very premature in trying to change

         22  this bill today.

         23                 This proposal would weaken the laws

         24  aimed at the ridding the City's public wholesale

         25  markets of organized crime and corruption and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            88

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  handcuff the Administration's ability to adequately

          3  investigate and take action against those committing

          4  criminal acts and violating the laws and regulations

          5  governing public markets.

          6                 Due to the initiatives, competition

          7  has returned to the markets, cost has been lowered,

          8  and the markets are safer, more efficient, and

          9  economically vibrant there they were in the years

         10  past providing thousands of jobs and valuable

         11  services to the residents and businesses in New York

         12  City.

         13                 These successful laws were

         14  negotiated, extensive negotiations and compromises

         15  between the Administration, the City Council and

         16  representatives, including the New York City Labor

         17  Council and Local 202.  They also want to change

         18  several of the areas officer, would unduly narrow

         19  the class of the union of labor organizational

         20  personnel subject to assessment of good character,

         21  honesty, and integrity, a loophole by which members

         22  of organized crime could infiltrate labor unions.

         23  The proposed amendment to immunizing employees of

         24  their illegal actions while operating within the

         25  scope of their employment would also limit the
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          2  City's ability to ensure that markets are run in a

          3  safe and lawful manner.

          4                 And to amend the arbitrator

          5  selection, where no union official has been

          6  suspended is far too premature, it hasn't even been

          7  tested.  And I believe that in picketing it should

          8  be left to NLRB, the National Labor Relation Board

          9  and the National Labor Relations Act as to where the

         10  picketers should be set up, and should have not

         11  given the opportunity for organized crime to be able

         12  to lead displays of arrogance and displays of

         13  unlawful acts within side the compound.

         14                 I agree with my Council Member

         15  Fisher, my colleague, and yet, it has not been

         16  tested, and therefore, why should we change

         17  something that has not yet been tested?  And I agree

         18  with my Council Member Clarke, my colleague, she has

         19  stated that organized crime is a problem.

         20                 Organized crime is pointed out in

         21  today's Post, and it says to this Committee and it

         22  says to this City Council to go very carefully.  And

         23  if anybody thinks that organized crime does not

         24  exist, again, I agree with my colleague, Council

         25  Member Fisher, if you read in the Metro Section of
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          2  this past Sunday, investigators detail a new mob

          3  strategy on building trades, which says that the mob

          4  is still very much alive in New York City.  And when

          5  we look out to the Jersey shores and we see that

          6  work going on in Jersey, and we see the cost that it

          7  costs us in Brooklyn, its because of the additional

          8  tax that the mob has put on the building

          9  construction.  And we have a bill that has been

         10  laying in here, the Administration has for over a

         11  year on this building trade, and hasn't been brought

         12  forward, but yet, we are going to try and change

         13  some of the laws here on the markets.

         14                 I think it is unrealistic to even

         15  think that we should go forward with such a bill and

         16  send a message to the communities in our City that

         17  organized crime, if you think organized crime is

         18  dead, you are very, very much mistaken.  Don't

         19  change a bill that hasn't been tested yet, test this

         20  bill, change it when it needs changing, but today is

         21  not the day.

         22                 Thank you, Sir.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

         24  Council member.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Just one
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          2  second.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Councilwoman.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  We just

          5  passed the ICIP legislation.  You're, the City

          6  Administration's Economic Development Corporation

          7  said that it was very important to give this

          8  abatement or exemption to developers so that we

          9  could increase the amount of construction and the

         10  number of projects for the workers who are going to

         11  work on those projects.  So earlier in this hearing

         12  we are faced with losing millions of dollars of tax

         13  revenue to help construction, and now the Mayor and

         14  you, in your rebuttal to this proposal tell us that

         15  we have to see how filled with corruption the

         16  construction industry is.  Let's, at least, have

         17  some consistency.  We have no standards when we give

         18  away all the money that we give, I mean, where, what

         19  are we talking about?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, let's,

         21  Councilman, do you have something to say, and then

         22  we will move forward.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  One bill has

         24  nothing to do with the other bill.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Okay?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:   About

          4  sending Committee- -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  All right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  There is mob

          7  control out there and I'm just pointing that out.

          8  It's not in all the construction field, but it is at

          9  a lot of construction field.  And if we think that

         10  it is not in the Fulton Fish Market anymore, we hope

         11  to God its not, but I'm sure there was chinks of it

         12  in there, and we want to make sure that organized

         13  crime is out of the market, and that is what this is

         14  all about, keeping organized crime out of our

         15  markets.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, thank

         17  you, very much. Council Member Fisher.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:   Thank you

         19  very much, Mr. Chairman.  I was going hold my

         20  comments until the hearing of which we voted, but I

         21  have to tell you in light of my colleague from

         22  Brooklyn's comments, I think that it is necessary

         23  that the record of this hearing be complete.

         24                 If this was a game of jeopardy, the

         25  answer would be, I should note that we have no
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          2  objection to increasing the time period to report

          3  changed information to 30 days, indeed, that change

          4  makes sense.  And the question would be, who is

          5  Frank Moss, First Deputy Commissioner of the

          6  Department of Investigation and Special Counsel and

          7  Deputy Commissioner to the Department of Business

          8  Services?  Because I'm reading from his testimony of

          9  October 29th, 1998.  If this were a game of

         10  jeopardy, the answer would be, in an effort to move

         11  forward we would respectfully suggest that a new

         12  registration application every five years might be

         13  an appropriate compromise.  And the question would

         14  be, what else did Frank Moss, the City's expert and

         15  market manager for all practical purposes testify on

         16  October 29th, 1998?

         17                 But you know what, Mr. Chairman and

         18  my colleagues, it is not a game, and it is not a

         19  question of jeopardy, it's a question of

         20  jeopardizing legitimate rights of people to

         21  organizing to be represented by Collective

         22  Bargaining agents.  And one of the reasons that, you

         23  know, we should all be proud that we have a rule of

         24  law and not a rule of men and women is that people

         25  come and go in government, but the principles in
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          2  which we act are supposed to transcend that.

          3                 When Randy Mastro and I, and you, Mr.

          4  Chairman and the Speaker's Chief of Staff at the

          5  time, were negotiating this law with the unions

          6  involved, one of the points the Deputy Mayor of

          7  Mastro made over and over and over again, was, that

          8  he had devoted a substantial part of his career on a

          9  personal basis to allowing unions to operate freely

         10  and honestly.  And that was his objective in this,

         11  in fact, Mr. Chairman, if you will recall, he used

         12  to keep a poster of solidarity, the Polish Trade

         13  Union, on the wall of his office, because he had

         14  made his career in large part on the Teamsters

         15  litigation and freed that union from the yoke of

         16  organized crime.

         17                 One of the principles that was

         18  easiest for Mr. Mastro to agree with us on was that

         19  legitimate, protected federally recognized

         20  collective bargaining activity in union activity

         21  would not be a basis for penalizing any union, and

         22  we wrote that language right into the law, and there

         23  was no problem with that.  And at the time we did

         24  it, we were not focused in the heat of the

         25  negotiations of that moment on the possibility that
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          2  the City of New York as regulator would recognize

          3  the rights of the union to protect their members

          4  through picketing and other concerted activity, but

          5  that the City of New York as landlord would tell

          6  those very same pickets to get off their property.

          7  And had we thought of that at the time, my

          8  recollection is, it was not even a topic that came

          9  up for discussion, had we thought of it at the time

         10  there is no doubt in my mind that Deputy Mayor

         11  Mastro would have agreed with us, because his

         12  interest was in making sure that unions could

         13  operate for the benefit of the members and not for

         14  the benefit of organized crime.

         15                 And at the hearing that we had in

         16  October, Mr. Chairman, you will recall that I asked

         17  Mr. Moss whether or not we ought to be concerned

         18  that the possibility that forcing picket lines to

         19  the outside of the gate would potentially disrupt

         20  activities at the market that had nothing to do with

         21  the employer who might be the subject of them,

         22  because unionized drivers and others might choose to

         23  stay away from a, even an informational picket line,

         24  rather than to sort out the jurisdictional issues,

         25  and my recollection is that he agreed that that was
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          2  a legitimate concern.

          3                 So I think that the point that I want

          4  to make, Mr. Chairman, is, is that, I'm, quite

          5  frankly, surprised and I'm actually pretty pleased

          6  that the changes that are being contemplated in this

          7  bill are not more significant than they are. I mean,

          8  given the amount of controversy that you and I were

          9  subject to when this legislation was first approved,

         10  one would have thought it was the end of

         11  civilization as we knew it.  Instead we have in this

         12  bill, at this point, basically, two items that the

         13  City itself had testified that they had no problem

         14  with, we have an issue about picketing that it seems

         15  to me from a common sense point of view as well as

         16  an equity point of view, makes more sense.  A

         17  question of responsibility is taken up in this

         18  legislation, mostly because Mr. Moss's suggestion

         19  that the fine schedule be revisited because it was

         20  so erroneous that even their own market manager was

         21  reluctant to issue notice of violations, because of

         22  the Administration's failure to carry out their

         23  commitment to address that, we're appropriately

         24  shifting responsibility to the individual.

         25                 And, by the way, Mr. Chairman, I want
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          2  to make it clear for the record, that the fact that

          3  the union might be able to organize a picket line or

          4  engage in other activity within the market, doesn't

          5  mean that they wouldn't be subject to the same rules

          6  that they would be subject to if they were picketing

          7  in front of any private building.  A police officer

          8  comes over and says, take the picket line and put it

          9  over there because you are blocking traffic, instead

         10  of putting it here, the same thing that would happen

         11  if they were picketing 250 Broadway, or if you

         12  recall when the 32 BJ did picket 250 Broadway, would

         13  still apply within the market, and the same thing is

         14  true.   If someone committed a crime or committed

         15  some other type of violation, we would not be

         16  absolving them of the responsibility, even if that

         17  was pursuant to a directive of their employer, but

         18  they are still personally responsible for that, but

         19  what it means is that their registration, their

         20  ability to work in the market at all, would not be

         21  added as a second level of penalty beyond that.

         22                 In addition to that, Mr. Chairman, we

         23  have added provisions regarding the forfeiture of

         24  vehicles and other provisions that were requested by

         25  the Administration, requested by the Administration.
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          2    So the point that I'm trying to make, Mr.

          3  Chairman, is, that these changes are entirely

          4  consistent, entirely consistent with both the spirit

          5  and the intent of the original legislation.

          6                 Mr. Lipsky was correct, there is no

          7  nexus, there is no nexus between the charge that

          8  these provisions would weaken the ability of the

          9  City to keep organized crime out of the markets in

         10  the changes themselves.  And, in fact, if anyone has

         11  signaled, if anyone has signaled that the climate

         12  has changed and things are more favorable for

         13  organized crime as a result of this bill,

         14  unfortunately, it is the Mayor, unfortunately, it is

         15  the Mayor, because it's the Mayor who chose to cast

         16  the amendments in those terms.

         17                 And I hope that these amendments are

         18  adopted into law, Mr. Chairman.  I am completely

         19  comfortable with the notion that none of these

         20  amendments would open the door to organized crime,

         21  and when they are enacted into law, I hope the Mayor

         22  will withdraw his comments, because we must continue

         23  to be vigilant against the possibility of

         24  infiltration of organized crime within the market,

         25  and if what we're doing is playing semantic games, I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  think we do a disservice to the workers, but also

          3  the intent of the original legislation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Well,

          5  Councilman Fisher, thank you for that testimony, it

          6  was very, very good.  But, and we're still in

          7  controversy, if you want to read Sunday's Times

          8  article regarding these amendments, Saturday's Post

          9  and today's Post in the editorial, so we're off and

         10  running as far as controversy goes, in the press

         11  anyway, but what is right, is right. The

         12  Administration here and it said, give it a year, we

         13  will come back and we will look at it and see if we

         14  can amend it to make it better, if it has to be made

         15  better.  We believe, anyway, staff and the majority

         16  of the Council believes it can be made better.

         17  Councilman Golden's comments are very well taken, he

         18  has a right to make those comments, he believes what

         19  he believes, but that is why we're legislators and

         20  we're not executors, we legislate, we compromise, we

         21  talk, we act, we make law.

         22                 And I want to thank all of you,

         23  incidently, obviously, this is important to you,

         24  look how many folks came down for this and all your

         25  union leaders, too.  So we will be back, again,
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          2  yelling and screaming, I guess, I say that jokingly,

          3  but that is what we do, we make law, we discuss, and

          4  we compromise, and this will move forward.  If we

          5  have to change these amendments, we will change them

          6  again, but the whole idea is to make this bill, as

          7  this law, more workable for the workers and for the

          8  City.  And so I thank you for all coming.  Council

          9  members will be back again and we will move forward.

         10                 This hearing is adjourned.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 3:35 p.m.)
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